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Our Mission Statement and Objectives

BEZEMNERTBRIR

Hong Kong AIDS Foundation was established in 1991 and is a non-governmental
social service organisation.

Our missions are :
1. to limit the spread of HIV infection in the community; and
2. to provide support for people infected with or affected by HIV / AIDS.

Our objectives are :

1. to enhance public awareness of the HIV/AIDS epidemic;

2. to educate the public in HIV / AIDS;

3. to provide arange of services to people living with HIV (PLHIV); and
4. to promote care and support for PLHIV.
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Our History
BEEENESR

28 Years of Service
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Established in 1991, Hong Kong AIDS Foundation celebrates its 28th anniversary this year.

Being a non-governmental social service organisation, the Foundation has been actively engaged
in the promotion of AIDS prevention education, provision of services and nurturing of a harmonious
and caring environment for those infected with or affected by HIV/AIDS. The Foundation has been
providing a full range of services on HIV prevention for the local community.
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Message from Patron

= EIPNE

The Honourable Mrs Carrie LAM CHENG Yuet-ngor, GBM, GBS,
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

HEBAmL T, KEFIE, GBS, HEEFRTHREITHRE
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Message RAET

| am pleased to congratulate the Hong Kong AIDS
Foundation on the publication of its 2019-2020 annual
report and another year of commendable success in the
continuing struggle against HIV/AIDS.

Globally, an estimated 38 million people live with
HIV/AIDS. And while it remains a chronic condition
without a cure, concerted global efforts have
contributed to the steadily increasing number of people
receiving HIV treatment, as well as a declining number of
new HIV infections and, in recent years, a dramatic
decline in AIDS-related deaths.

Thanks to our healthcare professionals, researchers,
non-governmental orgainisations and the many others
dedicated to HIV/AIDS prevention and care, Hong Kong
has remained a community with low HIV prevalence over
the past decade. The Hong Kong AIDS Foundation has
played a significant role in this regard. Established in
1991, the Foundation was created with a mission to limit
the spread of HIV infection in the community. To that
end, it implements HIV-prevention programmes
targeting vulnerable groups, while providing care and
support for people living with HIV. No less important, it
promotes public awareness of HIV/AIDS. Last December,
the Foundation orgainised its second annual “Run for an
AIDS-Free World". The charity event attracted more than
400 runners. And, in February, the Foundation launched
its “"Homme Home Test”. A free and confidential HIV
self-testing programme, it is designed to attract those
who may be reluctant to visit a clinic for testing,
preferring the convenience and privacy that the home
test offers.

The Foundation’s work extends beyond Hong Kong's
boundary through its involvement in the Beijing
Collaborating Centre, as well as its cooperation with the
Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS and the
AIDS Society of Asia and the Pacific.

| congraulate the Foundation, its board, staff and
volunteers, on their admirable efforts over the past year.
And | have every confidence that the Foundation will
continue to play a leading role in Hong Kong's
long-standing fight against HIV/AIDS.

(Mrs Carrie Lam)
Chief Executive
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
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Foreword By Chairman

The Hong Kong AIDS
Foundation was established in
1991 as a non-government
organization to help Hong Kong
in its fight against HIV. We have
been conducting our work with
limited start-up funding from
the government and The Hong
Kong  Jockey Club  and
subsequently from generous
public donations.

By entering 2021, we will be
celebrating our 30-year
Anniversary. Yet,“30 years” may
give us another meaning --
Though HIV and AIDS have
been prevalent for more than three decades, there are still a large
number of people in our community, regardless of education level,
not knowing what this disease actually is, and are also unaware of
the Foundation’s work in the area of HIV/AIDS prevention.

HK situation in 2019

As of 2019, although Hong Kong has seen slight decreases in
reported cases in the last few quarters consecutively, the
cumulative number of HIV infections has now exceeded the
threshold of 10,000. That said, Hong Kong can still claim to be a
region of low prevalence. This has been achieved through the
efforts of many frontline workers, volunteers, health care workers,
the Hong Kong SAR Government, passionate sponsors and the
Foundation amid the city’s extreme instability throughout the
year.

Social unrest & COVID-19

In 2019, we saw a long and extremely difficult period for every
Hong Kong citizen in terms of first the political instability in
mid-June and second, the outbreak of COVID-19 at the end of the
year. The work of the Foundation has been greatly affected by
these unprecedented challenges among others. We have to admit,
with the impact of the COVID-19 globally and locally, aspects of
the Foundation’s work could not be conducted normally since
mid-2019 towards the first quarter of 2020. Not only have our
various services, inclusive of case meetings, empowerment
workshops and counselling services for people living with HIV
been affected, but a substantial amount of our frontline work such
as outreach activities for MSM and high-risk groups, public talks on
promoting a discrimination-free environment aimed at groups
at-risk and Voluntary Counselling and Testing for HIV, were all
interrupted.

First to resume the VCT service

But work still has to be carried out for the sake of patients’ and
service users’ well-being. Ahead of the predicted second wave of
COVID-19 infections, starting mid-February, we were the first HIV
NGO to immediately resume the provision of the VCT service as
well as other HIV/AIDS education and awareness programmes
conducted by means of a virtual format.

HIV self-testing kit

Due to the social distancing measures and travel restrictions, our
frontline work in the Mainland had to be suspended for a while. As
we all know, China has put many innovative programs in motion
for key populations (i.e. MSM) earlier than Hong Kong. One
example was the implementation of the self-testing kit. Finally in
April 2019, with the ATF funding targeted at MSM groups, we
provided HIV self-testing kits to the local men who have sex with
men group until the social unrest occurred. Moreover, we resumed
the distribution in December once the citywide protests had
ceased for a while due to the District Council elections.

According to our staff’s information, the return rate of the kit to the
Foundation after testing was satisfactory and the Foundation did
play an active role in providing emotional support to the users
such as the proper procedure for using the kit and the correct way
of interpreting the test result. As a matter of fact, the Foundation’s
counselling managers have been on hand to help with the
emotional state of those testers whose results are unfavorable.
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Self-testing is no doubt one of the most effective tools nowadays
to protect oneself from HIV infection. The Foundation will keep
playing a role to assist future users. More importantly, the
Foundation must also be on hand to ensure that there are no cases
of “false negative” results which may result in a person overlooking
the “truth” about their HIV infection status.

Creative ways to sustain service

Amidst the most chaotic period between 2019 and 2020 due to the
ongoing social unrest and unresolved pandemic, the Foundation'’s
programme teams have used alternative ways to ensure the
continuous provision of services for both high-risk groups and
people living with HIV. For example, our staff members used a
virtual format to conduct most workshops with an aim to build
mutual support and patients’ empowerment. We even used the
virtual mode to meet with patients when they had doubts about
their situation or for a regular meet-up if a physical meeting was
not recommended. The case managers used virtual meetings to
meet with medical workers to discuss cases to ensure all
immediate counselling work was not interrupted. And for groups
at-risk, our staff members have used virtual means as well to
conduct timely HIV/AIDS education talks. As | have always
emphasized, we need to strongly promote to the general public
the core message of “anti-discrimination” even when we are in
difficult times.

A second service centre in Kowloon

To be more user friendly, we have opened a second centre (other
than our headquarter in Shaukeiwan) in Yau Ma Tei for those who
need our service in Kowloon and New Territories. This would mean
more work for our staff and to them | am most grateful.

Conclusion

Taking this opportunity, | would like to sincerely thank our
sponsors for their huge support which has helped us cope with
many of the problems related to COVID-19. | would also like to
acknowledge all the various types of support offered by some
major pharmaceutical companies such as Gilead Sciences, Inc. and
GlaxoSmithKline. With their funding strictly related to the matters
caused by the threat of COVID-19, we have managed to ensure the
Foundation operates as smoothly as possible despite the
disruptions due to social distancing and travel restrictions.

No matter whether the coronavirus situation improves or a vaccine
becomes available, the Foundation is already prepared to resume
all frontline work at any time; and so is our cooperation with our
partners in the Mainland. The 8th Conference of the Alumni
Association-China Training Project slated for mid-2021 is still in the
pipeline and we are confident that as we approach 2021, we will be
able to rekindle our relationship with our Mainland partners.

What remains as the biggest threat to HIV prevention?
Our belief is, despite the challenges we face, we shall put our

patients and service users first and foremost. We shall do
everything we can to deliver a strong message on eliminating
discrimination and stigmatization to change people’s mind set
drastically, making for a better, all-inclusive world. Bias and
misunderstanding remain the biggest threats to HIV prevention.

Last but definitely not least, although COVID-19 is still unresolved
and we may be facing a new wave of infections, we shall not put
aside our ultimate goal to terminate AIDS by 2030. We are
established as one of the leading HIV NGOs in Hong Kong and we
share the mission to curb this virus in 10 years.

The Foundation is fortunate now to have a team of young staff.
They are passionate, unswerving under the leadership of our Chief
Executive and together we will use our creative mind and passion
to overcome all difficulties and keep soldiering on. Our mission is
simple: To turn the tide of HIV and end AIDS once and for
all.

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman
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Hong Kong AIDS Foundation has a history of 29 years. Right from the start, the Foundation was born with the mission of
limiting the spread of HIV infection in the community through the provision of the VCT service and HIV/AIDS and sexual
health education. In addition, we have been providing support to those affected by HIV/AIDS. We have been striving to
help Hong Kong maintain a low HIV prevalence and mainland China accelerate its response to HIV/AIDS. Over the years,
what has made us different from others included our work with counterparts at regional and international levels in the
global fight against the AIDS epidemic.

AIDS remains an incurable disease. HIV/AIDS has resulted in estimated 33 million deaths and globally 38 million people
are still living with the virus.

Since 1984, the accumulated number of HIV infections in Hong Kong has finally hit the threshold of 10,000 (the cumulative
number of reported cases was 10,550 as at the end of June). But Hong Kong is still considered a region of low HIV
prevalence.

Not only the provision of effective service for young, mature and ageing PLHIV, but also how can we stay competitive among others and how can we provide
something innovative for our service groups in line with the ever-changing situation of HIV as well as how can we maintain our quality service, how can we stay
creative/flexible when amid social unrest AND COVID-19.

Let us first join together to say a big “Thank You” to all of the following people in a joint effort in expressing our genuine gratitude:

1. Our all major sponsors

2. Our dedicated staff members and all of our committed volunteers in different capacities; and

3. Our Members of the Advisory Board, Executive Board, Service Committee, Investment Committee and Education Committee who are bringing
the Foundation valuable insights with their wealth of experience in their various professional backgrounds, and social services.

Our work could never be successful without great support. Without their generosity and participation, the Foundation would not have been able to build up
our momentum to fight against HIV/AIDS.

HIGHLIGHTS OF OUR WORK (2019)

1. INTRODUCTION

Projects in the local community:

+ “Man-d Project” - a two-year project consisting of an HIV Preventive and Sexual Health Programme for Men who Have Sex with Men (MSM)
“High-risk Groups” - a two-year project to achieve a user-friendly voluntary HIV Testing and Counselling Service as well as an Education Service for People
with High-risk Behaviors i.e. Male Clients of Female Sex Workers and People with High-risk Behaviours
“Peer Power” - a two-year project consisting of an HIV Prevention and Sexual Health Programme for Ethnic Minorities
Empowerment and Support Services for People Living with HIV - a two year project to empower PLHIV and help them maintain good sexual health,
conducive to resuming quality lives and achieving effective HIV prevention

2. HIV PREVENTIVE & SEXUAL HEALTH PROGRAMME FOR MSM

For the year of 2019, the Foundation was not only able to launch the above-mentioned programmes to encourage every MSM community to sustain a safe
lifestyle with regular HIV tests and safe sex adoption, but we were also able to pilot the HIV self-testing scheme targeting Young MSM groups. This was such a
breakthrough after we had lobbied the Department of Health for years.

3.“PEER POWER” - HIV PREVENTION AND SEXUAL HEALTH PROGRAMME FOR ETHNIC MINORITIES (") #([% %)

This project aimed to curb the spread of HIV particularly among the female members of ethnic minorities (EM) by implementing a series of sexual health
programmes on HIV prevention education. The reason why we secured the funding from the Council for the AIDS Trust Fund was due to our extensive
experience in implementing HIV services to EM in the past few years as a pilot project. The ATF praised the Foundation on its successful reaching out to a
“significant quantity of EM clients” and many of them were sexually active yet lacked enough HIV/STD prevention knowledge.

The key of this project was that the Foundation had to cooperate with various EM-related organisations.

4. HIGH-RISK GROUPS” - A 2-YEAR PROJECT TO ACHIEVE A USER-FRIENDLY VOLUNTARY HIV TESTING AND COUNSELLING SERVICE AS WELL AS
EDUCATION SERVICE FOR PEOPLE WITH HIGH-RISK BEHAVIORS

After not being officially supported by ATF funding for two years in a row, starting in 2019, we secured the funding again for this project and this programme
was able to run for more than a year. Please also note that the title of this project was changed from “Female sex workers and their male clients with other
high-risk groups” to “High-risk Groups”. The reasons behind this were first to simply make the project more focused on the areas for non-MSM groups with
high-risk sexual behaviour; second, “High-risk populations” has become a more neutral, widely acceptable theme than “sex workers and clients” nowadays.
Third and most importantly, we have included young heterosexual people in this project; a group which, though equally vulnerable to the virus, has not seen
government funding to support them. Of all age groups, those aged between 20-29 accounted for one of the greatest proportions of reported HIV infections
in 2019. More resources should be allocated to promote sex education to provide proper counselling to adolescents about safe sex.

Through the provision of a user-friendly, easily accessible, free, confidential and anonymous, center-based and outreach HIV counselling and testing service,
this project aimed to serve ‘hidden’ populations with high-risk behavior and suspicion of HIV infection. Target groups in this project: young heterosexual
adults, male members of ethnic minorities, female sex workers (FSW) and their male clients (MCFSW). Services included VCT services (counselling and blood
test), public education talks, Internet intervention and outreach services. Regrettably, HIV self-test kits were not able to be distributed among these hidden
groups as there is no ATF funding to support it.
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5. EMPOWERMENT AND SAFER SEX EDUCATION FOR PEOPLE LIVING WITH HIV (PLHIV)”

This project aimed to empower PLHIV; equip them with the skills to face and tackle their daily problems, especially those closely related with their positive
status; maintain safer sex practices; enhance the quality of their lives and involve them in HIV prevention so as to prevent secondary infection and foster the
development of a caring, supportive and inclusive social environment.

In short, we wanted PLHIV to:

1. cope with their chronic illness

2. encourage drug adherence

3. increase sexual health awareness

4. build up social support among others (i.e. our staff/volunteer when conducting home visits and escort services)
5. create an inclusive community to enhance life satisfaction and well-being of PLHIV

In November 2019, the Foundation was appointed as one of the grantees for the 2020-2021 Rainbow Grant by Gilead Sciences Inc., amid intense competition
from some 140 NGOs across the Asian region.

Our project to be funded is “A Community Outreach Service for People Living with HIV to achieve their 4th 90s”. The grant will cover a few areas including a
one-year rental fee of an additional outreach center and specialist fees (i.e. nutritionist, physiotherapist, etc.).

6. OTHERS (non-ATF Funded)

Public Education :

Due to the widespread social unrest resulting from the proposed extradition bill and the further issues caused by the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 since
January 2020, our HIV/sexual health activities could not be conducted as many University campuses had been damaged. Alternatively, we conducted the
education booths and HIV prevention education at our outreach center for members of the public who came for an HIV test. And regarding the distribution of
self-test kits funded by the ATF strictly for young MSM, we have been distributing them at our outreach center as well.

Publicity :

In late-2018, we invited the popular independent film actor Mr. Lo Chun Yip (Also the Actor in a Supporting Role nominee for the 39th Hong Kong Film Awards)
and hipster icon Miss Angel Lam Ting to be the leading actor and actress in the Foundation’s brand new TV Announcements in the Public Interest (API) with the
theme “Love with Sextitude”. The TV APIs started to broadcast from December 2018 onwards through various media channels, including local TV stations,
website, Facebook, Instagram and Youtube channel of the Foundation. The key message of the APl was simply that people living with HIV are still able to have
intimate relationships with partners as long as their own "Undetectable = Untransmittable" level can be reached with HAART treatment.

Fundraising :

In December 2018, the Foundation was chosen as one of the recipients of
the 1st Gilead’s Asia Rainbow Grant (the Grant) to financially support our programme,
namely the “Run for Breaking Barriers: Erase the Stigma of HIV/AIDS". The charity run,
“Run for Breaking Barriers: Erase the Stigma of HIV/AIDS” was held in the last quarter of
2019 to raise public awareness of HIV/AIDS.

Huge kudos also to GSK, M.A.C. AIDS Fund and BEAUSKIN Medical Group for other types
of solid support.

Last but definitely not least, a huge thanks to Sa Sa International Holdings Limited for
allowing the Foundation’s donation boxes to be placed in their stores.

7.WORK IN THE MAINLAND, AT THE REGIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL LEVEL
Just prior to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the implementation of travel restrictions, The Foundation was invited to co-organize and co-host the 5th AIDS
Forum of Beijing, Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan in April 2019 as well. The main theme of the Forum was "Multi-pronged Strategy in HIV/AID Prevention and

Cure; Collaborative Efforts in Empowerment”.

We also attended the 6th National Conference on HIV/AIDS in October 2019 and our Executive Chairman, Dr. LEONG Che-hung was invited as one of the Key
Note Speakers.

However, as the pandemic, which broke out in early-2020, is still unresolved. Our frontline work in the Mainland has had to be suspended for a while. We have
to wait until the coronavirus situation improves or a vaccine becomes available to fully resume our cooperation with our counterparts in the Mainland.

LOOKING AHEAD

The Foundation will continue to 1) help HK maintain low HIV prevalence; 2) assist China in accelerating its response to HIV/AIDS; 3) join global forces to fight
against the AIDS epidemic. Since 2014, the Foundation has been joining with the world towards the 90-90-90 established by UNAIDS: 90% of people living with
HIV will know their HIV status by 2020, 90% of people who know their HIV-positive status will be on treatment, and 90% of people on treatment will have a
suppressed viral load. To truly meet the needs of people living with HIV, we must also pursue a fourth “90”, where 90% of people living with HIV can have a
good health-related quality of life.

Lastly, to end the AIDS epidemic by 2030, remains the Foundation’s ultimate objective.

THANK YOU!

~

Eris S.S. Lau
Chief Executive
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Structure of Boards and Committees

ESRREEERE

Advisory Executive
Board Board

HHERE BB

Executive
Committee

HTRAS

Service

Education Finance Investment
Committee Committee Committee

HEERE MEERE HEERE

Committee
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Members of the Executive Board 2019-2021
2019-2021 EERFZES

CHAIRMAN

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP
REIEBE, AEFTEE, GBS, P

HONORARY SECRETARY
Mrs. KathleenT. Y. YIP, JP
EREMHLL, P

MEMBER MEMBER
Z8 %8
Prof. CHEN Zhiwei Mr. HO Sai Chu, GBM, GBS, JP
BRASEHR iS4, REHIENE, GBS, JP

MEMBER
Z8 Z8
Ms. Vivian W. Y. LI Mr. POON Kai Tik
TR L BRUASE

VICE-CHAIRMAN (FINANCE)

8 &l 15 (75)

Mr. Keith K. W. LEE
TS

HONORARY TREASURER
RIFAE
Mrs. Margaret S. LEUNG
PHERT L

MEMBER
=8
Dr. Simon S. M. KWOK, SBS, JP
ZRDEAtE L, SBS, JP

MEMBER
=8
Mrs. Emily H.Y.TANG
HERELL

VICE-CHAIRPERSON (FUNDRAISING)

BEF(ES) =

Mrs. Nina Y. B. LAM, MH
MBIk L, MH

HONORARY LEGAL ADVISER
RIERRRA
Mr. Christopher H. T. CHAN
BREEZRSTE

MEMBER
%8
Dr. Wilson LAM
WARHEEE

Miss Nora H. C. YAU, MH, JP
ERRJ¥2%2 4, MH, JP

VICE-CHAIRMAN (SERVICE)

EFE(RF%)

Dr. Patrick C. K. LI, BBS, JP
ZIREE A4, BBS, P

S

MEMBER
=8
Ms. Grace M. Y. LEE
FPFEL L

|
MEMBER
Z8
Ms. Pansy P.C. YU
FEHZ L
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Members of the Advisory Board 2019-2021
2019-2021 R ZEEE&AR

Chairman [

Mr. HO Sai Chu, GBM, GBS, JP
(AERESEE, REFHIEE, GBS, JP

Members &

Mr. Christopher H. T. CHAN
BREEZR 5o A

Dr. Simon S. O. IP, GBS, CBE, JP
w482 8+, GBS, CBE, JP

Mr. Henry H. W. LAI
FERASR At

Dr. Peggy LAM PEI Yu-dja, GBS, SBS, OBE, MBE, JP (Founding Chairperson)
ME 2% %1, GBS, SBS, OBE, MBE, JP (B2 X %)

Ms. Grace M. Y. LEE

=3k e

Dr. Eric K. C. LI, GBS, OBE, JP
ZZ$EH L, GBS, OBE, JP
Mr. Stephen W.T. LIU, JP
BT, P

Mr. David Y. T. LUI
BEREL

Mr. POON Kai Tik
FARRGHEITE

Mr. Richard L. K. TSANG
=RVE= S e

Dr. Andrew W. H. WANG
TIERE LT
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Committees 2019-2021

2019-2021 MEEEE

Executive Committee $iiTES2

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Keith K. W. LEE

Mrs. Nina Y. B. LAM, MH

Dr. Patrick C. K. LI, BBS, JP

Mrs. Kathleen T.Y.YIP, JP

Mrs. Margaret S. LEUNG

Mr. POON Kai Tik

Education Committee I ES2

RETREEAE, KEFENE, GBS, JP (£F)
TRESE

MZEGKLt, MH

Z=fEHLse 4, BBS, JP

=Bt JP

ZHERLZ L

EECHE A

Mrs. Margaret S. LEUNG (Chairperson)

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP (Ex-officio Member)
Mrs. Kathleen T.Y.YIP, JP

Dr.Jane C.Y. LAU

Dr. LEE Man Po

Ms. Grace M. Y. LEE

Ms. Vivian W. Y. LI

Mr. POON Kai Tik

Miss Nora H. C. YAU, MH, JP

Finance Committee Bl IR ESE

REFRIL (£F)

REBEE, REFHE, GBS, P (EREE)
EHEEWmL L, P

BIE=fREE

EXEEE

FRHERZE

FHEMTE

ERA[¥ %+, MH, JP

Mr. Keith K. W. LEE (Chairman)

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP (Ex-officio Member)
Dr. Patrick C. K. LI, BBS, JP

Mrs. Kathleen T.Y.YIP, JP

Mrs. Margaret S. LEUNG

Mr. David Y. T. LUI

Mr. POON Kai Tik

Investment Committee I3 &8 Z S8

PO ()
REBELE, AEFEE, GBS, P (HRZA)
Zs[EEE A4 BRS, JP

SEEEHLL, P

REABLL

FEESLE

B RS

Mr. Keith K. W. LEE (Chairman)
Mrs. Kathleen T.Y.YIP, JP

Mr. Stephen W. T. LIU, JP

Mr. David Y.T. LUI

Service Committee IRIXESE

FHRERE (£FF)
EHEBWmL L, P
BeRESE, P

Dr. Patrick C. K. LI, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Dr. Wilson LAM (Vice-Chairman)

Dr. LEONG Che Hung, GBM, GBS, JP (Ex-officio Member)
Dr. Jacky M. C. CHAN

Ms. CHAN Siu Kuen

Mr. Daniel CHEUNG

Mr. Ben Y. S. KWONG

Dr.Jane C.Y. LAU
Dr.OwenT.Y.TSANG

Mr. WON Mau Cheong

Ms. Pansy P. C. YU

Representatives of PLHIV

ZMEE B A, BRS, JP (EE)
Wigmest (B1ERE)
PETREEAE, REFEE, GBS, P (ERZEE)
PR B BE

/N

RIS AE

FREIR S

BEREE

BIXBGE

FEHRL L

BpENRE
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Structure of Executive Secretariat

HMITH SRR

Senior Manager
of Finance

EAREA T HEE

Human Resources &
Administration
Manager

ANEFER
TSR

Project Assistant

IR BN

Chief Executive

HRE

Hong Kong AIDS Foundation -
Chinese Association of STD/AIDS
Prevention and Control
Collaborating Centre
BEEHRESE -
REM R E R AR E
IHESFRAE
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Deputy Director
of Programmes

IRE #PE#BES

Programme
Managers

IRE&EE

Senior
Programme Officers

ERIEEEE

Programme Officers

IRREE

Corporate Affairs
Manager

HIBEFEE

Assistant
Marketing & Publicity
Manager
EhiErmiim{EE &
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Staff List
i =R

Chief Executive
Ms. Eris LAU

Deputy Director of Programmes
Mr. Johnny LI

Senior Manager of Finance
Ms. Hazel LAM

Corporate Affairs Manager

Mr. Brian CHAN since 24 June 2019

Programme & Research Manager

Mr. Jason CHAN up to 31 March 2020

Human Resources & Administration Manager
Ms. Carol KWOK

Programme Manager
Mr. Timothy WONG

Programme Manager

Ms. Wincy WANG up to 24 October 2019

Programme Manager

Mr. Wayne YIU up to 23 March 2020

Assistant Marketing & Publicity Manager

Mr. Buck CHOW since 6 November 2019

Senior Programme Officer
Mr. lan WONG

Senior Programme Officer

Ms. Suki LOK up to 8 October 2019

Senior Programme Officer

Mr. Keith TAM since 9 October 2019

Senior Programme Officer

Mr. Wai LAW up to 7 February 2019

Programme Officer

Mr. Quentin CHUNG since 8 July 2019

Programme Officer

Ms. Crystal LI since 1 November 2019

Project Assistant
Ms. Sheung KO

wuns

BIRR L+
IREEREIE R
FHERE

EREA TR
Mag izt

MRS
BREW et

HE RIS
e
ANERRITHEE
KKk TL

I5E 88

BOUE ek

I5E 818

FME 2+

IR #EE
PRETE e

201946 524 H#E

F2020F3 831 H1E

F2019F10824H 1k

F£20205£3 H23H 1k

EnIEmMIRE R A RREE

AR Sk

SHRIEEEE
FafmiE

BREREE
s 37 e

ERIFEEE
BEA it
BRIFEEE
R e

IREXE
EIRB L

IRREE
FRR LT

THEENE
EEELt

2019411 B6H#E

F2019F1088H 1k
H2019F1059H#E
F2020F287H 1k
H201947 B8HE
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Work Reports
2019-2020
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Boards and Committees

EERREEE

Since our establishment in 1991, the Foundation has encountered various challenges on HIV / AIDS prevention. We are
grateful to have members of the Boards and Committees for their tremendous support and guidance, making our work
a less daunting one.

In exercising their oversight, members of the Executive Board have been putting at the forefront core values such as
transparency, accountability, and good governance and holding regular meetings with the Secretariat to receive reports
on work progress and financial position. Members have also been participating in various activities in order to put our
objectives into practice together with the frontline staff members. Moreover, members of the Advisory Board, with their
rich experience and insights, have been offering the Foundation invaluable advice, enabling the work of the Foundation
to proceed smoothly.

The Executive Committee, Education Committee, Finance Committee, Investment Committee and Service Committee
had regular meetings with the Secretariat, giving practical suggestions and advices. To ensure quality service and
effective management, the Board bi-annually proposed and elected Vice-Chairmen for finance, fundraising and service
respectively.

We would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to members of the Executive Board, Advisory
Board and the Committees for their tremendous support over years. The Foundation will overcome the challenges
ahead with unabated drive and momentum.

BI99TFERIUR  BRSEEEZBIEIELEBETOUE > ARERER  BEZEERZ/NMNEZREZRENX
FRIEY  RESENITESUERRIESHET -

EEREHNEMERETEE  UTHRESENIIEERNMBUIRR - ZHLUERE - MEURRIFERSERZOEER
EfceEit RE8— E%ﬁﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁ EE %‘&—ﬁfﬂ&iﬂ&/zzﬁ]ﬁ?/ T TMEREERRERE - EﬁFﬁéé SR E
WA PMNERTIRE A TESEFNPEENERNES

HITERE  HELRT  MHERS  REZBEIRBZEGHUBRBTENER  BBHEE ﬁa‘fl‘%&ﬂﬁﬁ’%£
HERHREMER - AEESEEARMERLERLRE  EEREMFEBLEE=URIE  SRIFEHH
5L RIS HES R TIE

il RPALEER  BEZEF/NMEZEFZEREARNHE - BESZEZFRNRNNZE  B2TFEE
H B R S EDE -

'llll!liﬂllnﬂllll"'“nerm.., =il -
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4 L)

The 28th Annual General Meeting £ _+ /\EAF A
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Support Services for PLHIV

REZIERFS

Thanks to the availability of Highly Active Antiretroviral Therapy (HAART) through the public medical system, the life
expectancy of PLHIV has substantially extended and HIV is now be considered as a chronic illness globally. Of course,
the situation in Hong Kong is not exceptional. Almost all PLHIV is now live a normal life and we can see a growing
number living through their prime of life. Despite that, they often encounter early ageing and/or a series of non-AIDS
defining chronic ilinesses correlated to long-term drug treatment. Hence, working together with PLHIV on enhancing
and enriching their quality of life —“the 4th 90" - is the newest challenge for the Foundation.

During the year, the Foundation organised support workshops quality life enhancement activities and interest classes
for PLHIV, which were aimed at dealing with their emotions, increasing their self-acceptance, providing coping
strategies for living with HIV, promoting safe sex practice, breaking isolation, and last but not least, dealing with life
challenges.

In addition, a group of well-trained PLHIV volunteers conducted home visits and clinic escort services for PLHIV who live
alone or reside in elderly homes. We also extended the collaborations with various commercial and non-governmental
organisations, such as colleges and elderly homes, by delivering talks on promoting a discrimination-free environment.

BREAHBRARCRUSHETRELAE » AAERTBRAENERSS  BELRERRAZRRT —BEEMER - &

RRERTAGIN  LPRERAEHEB LIEENAETE  HRESZ FBHhMANESEA - @EAL  mf—Rag

BRERN/R—RIARMZEYERFEIFBLAMMNEIERR - At - BRAEXABRAMEEHETFEER » 7RED
MEMME?0) » HESERFEmEAIHE -

ESENFARRLEEN T PEERTNRALEERNEHNEE NG - SEEREMMNEE - REMMNBER
BAE - R|EBHEBLRRERANERR - EEERZNMTE - FTIRAI S R 4 Tk -

5 BT —HIRBARNBREREIRT KO BEREFERERENRRLE  LRUHEZRY - 227
BEBRXEELFBNAM (FIUNAFERRNLERE) SERIEE » (RERKRERE -

......

PLHIV’s outing event
RIREN P SN

PLHIV's Xmas' Gathering
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Empowerment and Safer Sex Education for People Living with HIV (PLHIV) Year 2019-2020

2019-20205F K "ERERHERREENTEE .

No. of PLHIV received counselling and support services:

XS N SRR RAERE ¢

* Mature age PLHIV (MAPLHIV) (aged 50 or above) 47
R RAE (At t)
* Other PLHIV (below 50 years of age) 1 52
Hfth&pE (A+mUT)
No. of participants in therapeutic support groups 42
AERIESR/ NS B AR
No. of participants in regular peer support groups 82
EERESHRNES AR
No. of participants in Quality Life Enhancement activities 242
RITEFREREHLE AR
No. of voluntary service sessions 29
FLRPE S B AR
No. of trained volunteers
= LIRT 8 708
No. of home visit and care service sessions for MAPLHIV 56
RARRRER BRI RIS S8
No. of participants in talks for colleges and elderly homes 1 34

RABBRRME Efe & 229008 H F AR

The above project was funded by the AIDS Trust Fund
U LIEEHEESRERAESE

Regular gathering for elderly PLHIV
RERMNBRAEREEN RS

The interest class for PLHIVs
R RUAE R ALV ERE NE
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Ethnic Minorities

DR %

HIV Prevention and Sexual Health Programme for Ethnic Minorities

With funding support from the Council for the AIDS Trust Fund, the Foundation continued to provide the HIV Prevention
and Sexual Health Programme for Ethnic Minorities during the year. This project aimed to educate and promote HIV and
sexual health knowledge within the Ethnic Minorities (“EM”) communities. In order to reduce their high-risk sexual
behaviour and minimize their risk of infection, the Foundation collaborated with different organizations to provide
educational activities and outreach services to EM during the year. Despite the COVID-19 pandemic has caused
significant impact to our outreach service as well as Voluntary Counselling and Testing (“VCT") service, we have
strengthened our services on HIV/AIDS prevention to EM through various channels including online social media,
sexual health hotlines, internet intervention and volunteer training.

RO EERAEERESEN R RRIEE

EERBREIESNENT  AERFARERLERERAZBLBEHRESEMAMEREERE - AZBRTEAKES
5 BOEERERHEEBEENINRRT - HEEBHEZERESEESTNSERMTR  REMMAZ R ER -
Bt EE M A RS - SHRBRBAELRRSTEAXHERBEZINEAYE | BEASHEREIB G RE MR
% BEREEMZRE - MEEHR BENARERLE > 28RS DBETHRBHIV/BEBHOEH -

Outreach services

SMNRARES
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Services for EM 9B IR OARTE

No. of HIV/AIDS educational activities 7
HIV/Z A E A B B

No. of participants in HIV/AIDS educational activities 68
HIV/Z R B TR B2 8 R

No. of contacts through outreach services 694
) e AR T 2 g A OR

No. of HIV/AID prevention and sexual health educational materials distributed 6 71 0
FRFTHIV/E R A R E M EREHE !

No. of contacts through internet intervention

LN AEBAK 70,405
No. of contacts through sexual health hotline 71 3
M B AR IR TS 5 & AR

No. of users of VCT service 1 46
BRI AR RS RBEF A AKX

No. of volunteers trained 1 0

1% T#E

The above project was funded by the AIDS Trust Fund
M EIEE BB LREEESEH

HIV/AIDS educational activities
HIVIE 2R BB EE

Volunteer training
=T8I
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High-Risk Groups

= B P %o

Outreach activities

The Foundation conducted regular outreach activities to reach out the High Risk Groups, including heterosexual young
adults, female sex workers and their clients by means of visiting bars and pubs, nightclubs, hourly hotels and massage
centres.

The Foundation ultized 2 corporate events to reach out the high risk group i.e. the stage drama“The Normal Heart” and
“Run for an AIDS Free World” charity run.

NEEE
ELHERBTNRED  CHERSH AT  BERELEETL  UEEEAREE - EhOERILNES
BAEA > KM THEE D REREE -

ESERBFEMAVRAREE - G1F T8%0) EABIK TRun for an AIDS Free World | ZZMiREIZEESER
R -

HIV and sexual health educational talks and workshops

The Foundation organised a series of HIV and sexual health including HIV and STD knowledge, condom DIY and its
selection, importance of regular HIV testing, sex negotiation skills in order to arouse the public awareness of HIV
prevention and early and regular testing.

HIVER R B EBEN T (FR
AT READHEGHV/ERRREAETHVEESRANER - ESWBHT —FIHV/1LRBEREBER T -
MESEERRALRAR B TRERNMRERIE « BIETHVRNN BT R B FEERS -

Volunteers recruitment and training

The Foundation recruited volunteers throughout the year, each volunteer recieved comprehensive trainings including
practical skills on VCT service, outreach service, AIDS Helpline and internet intervention etc, delivered by experienced
staff members.

F LRSS
ESWRERERT - YRORYENRANTEY - EUNEEE | VTR  SREY  EERRENRBLENAZ

% -
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Men who have Sex with Men

FEEMHREE

The objective of “Man-d Project” is to curb the spread of HIV among the men who have sex with men (“MSM”)
community. In order to achieve this objectives, the Foundation had implemented a series of sexual health programmes
including HIV prevention, promotion of safer sex practice as well as early and regular HIV testing.

E&® Man-d Project] HEREBILELFRESEMHEBEANERE - REFER RSl T - RJIMHERE
ANEBREEZBREREE ~ HEZ2MTAULBRNEREZRERA -

Mature MSM (MMSM) ZASF 58 B4 1E65E
Capacity building workshops
The Foundation organised various capacity building workshop for MMSM in order to build up their life-base, in-depth,

all-rounded capacities and practical skills. In addition to physical workshops, virtual workshops were organised amidst
the COVID-19 pandemic.

REIEE T 1R
BT ERE BRI BERHERIELE TR AR ENE AR ELRRIESE— R AR -
BT BT - AATER SRR - ERE L TIE -

Male’s Prostate Massage Workshop
SEAPIRIRE TR

Internet Slang Classroom with Sexual Health and Drug Education

MEHREREENRENEDENRB

Financial Planning Workshop
A TEY
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Peer support groups

Social and recreational group activities were organised to strengthen the bonding of our MMSM group members, at
where they cultivated the positive life attitude and healthy lifestyle by the influence given by peer group members, and
thus developed awareness of safe sex practice and early and regular HIV test as personal health protection measure.

RHFETTIVE

RTIMRRAFBBEE ML B8N 7T I SHUTMURELTEE - HZEBRHENERTE  BEH
BEMALRENREAFETR  KMRSHREMTRUREBEMERHVEAINRR » LLULIEREARERER
161

MMSM Group 8th Anniversary Party
S \AFIRE

Mid autumn Festival Gathering
PAEER S

Dragon back Autumn Hiking
BERLEST

Christmas & Winter Solstice Party
Bk EEEIRY
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Young MSM (YMSM) £ &5 3B B14i5MEE

Educational booths, talks and thematic HIV workshops

The Foundation collaborated with local colleges, including City University of Hong Kong, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, The Open University of Hong Kong and Tung Wah College, and
organised educational booths, talk and thematic HIV workshops for the YMSM.

These series of programmes included volunteer training, VCT service, self-testing, sexual health for sexual minorities and
outreach activities.

HEE - BENMHIVERETES
EeTHEAMAERE » GRESEHTMAE HEPXKRE - FEET KRS - HFERARKENFES - AESES
M E RN T HE A EELHIVEET (R -

E-RYRNFERERELTLEI  BZERSNENE - BEWA - O RERERNEED
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‘Life skills-based HIV Education’ (LSBE) Group

A series of ‘LSBE’ groups have been tailor-made for YMSM for exploring and cultivating the life skills in communication
and interpersonal relationship, decision-making, critical thinking, coping and self-management.

- ‘Four Colors Personality Analysis’

- ‘Singing Bow!’ Meditation Group

- ‘The Normal Heart’ Drama Post-screening Sharing Session
- Dessert-making Class

- Peer support group
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YMSM Self-Test (Home Test)
Pilot Programme

The new initiative ' F 558 H Bl 2 Homme Home Test’
provided YMSM who have never had HIV tests with
information about their HIV status by providing an
opportunity to test themselves at home discreetly yet
instantly.
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Publicity and Fundraising

EEREN

Newsletter “In Touch”

The Foundation published the newsletter “InTouch” regularly in order to strengthen the ties with our members,
volunteers and various stakeholders in the community.

In the year 2019/2020, the Foundation published 3 issues of “InTouch’, covering latest information of HIV / AIDS and
recent development of the Foundation.

Printed copies of “InTouch” were dispatched to individuals and local organizations including public libraries, colleges,
universities, secondary schools, government departments, public clinics, health centres, methadone clinics, youth
centre, outreach agencies and AIDS service organisations; electronic version of “InTouch” were available for review
free-of-charge on the official website of the Foundation.
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Press release

The Foundation distributes press releases regularly for delivery of the Foundation’s views on various HIV / AIDS related
issues, aiming to raise the public awareness.

In the year 2019/2020, the Foundation published 3 issues of press release.

For full text of the press releases, please visit the Foundation’s official website.
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Media interview

The Foundation actively participates in various press interviews and conferences and conveys the key message of
anti-discrimination and promotes the recent services of the Foundation to the community.

In the year 2019/2020, the Foundation attended a number of media interviews, including 2 live interview sessions in
RTHK Radio 3 programmes, “1 2 3 Show” and “The Saturday Squad” on 25 September 2019 and 9 November 2019
respectively; a press conference on Ageing PLHIV hosted by Gilead Sciences Inc. on 5 December 2019.
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Ms. Eris Lau, Chief Executive, briefed the media the latest
HIV/AIDS statistics in Hong Kong and recent work of

Foundation. ] " 4 o
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A group photo of Ms. Agnes Lau (the 2nd from the right), representative of
Gilead Sciences Hong Kong Limited and Ms Eris Lau (the 1st from the
right), Chief Executive, with other speakers.
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World AIDS Day 2019

On 1 December 2019, the Foundation organized “Run for an AIDS Free World” Charity Run at Sunny Bay Promenade,
aiming to raise fund, promote care and support, raise public awareness and create a caring community for people living
with or affected by HIV / AIDS.

There were game booths and education panels featured at the event, for racers and public.
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Corporate Posters

The Foundation launched a series of corporate posters, with the theme “Love with Sextitude’, featuring Mr. Sing Lam, Ms.
Angel Lam and Mr. Wong Ho Ting, aiming at conveying key messages of having responsible sexual behavior and taking
regular HIV test as an integral part of regular physical examination to the community.
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Mainland Projects and International
Collaborations
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The 5th AIDS Forum of Beijing, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

The Foundation was a co-organizer of “The 5th AIDS Forum of Beijing, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan". The forum was
held at the GIS NTU Convention Center in Taipei City from 12 to 13 April 2019.

FhERERGNMEZRRIE

£SER [SIEEAAMBELRHE] NS
BT -

Mrs. Margaret Leung (the 2"d from the left), a member of the Executive
Board and Chairperson of the Education Committee, attended the
opening ceremony
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A group photo of Ms. Pansy YU (the 2nd from the right), Advanced
Practice Nurse of Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Member of the
Executive Board, with other speakers
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A group photo of Prof. Chen Zhiwei (the 15t from the left), Director of the
AIDS Institute of the University of Hong Kong, with other speakers.
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A group photo of Ms. Eris LAU (the 15t from the left), Chief Executive, with
other speakers

RHERRRELT(AHEEAMEESR

q‘p?iﬁﬁiﬁﬁ&%ﬁiﬁﬁ 2019-2020/34



An Exchange and Sharing Tour to San Francisco, USA

The representative of the Foundation had attended an Exchange and Sharing Tour to San Francisco, USA from 22 to 26
April 2019. The tour was supported by Gilead Sciences Inc. and co-organised by the Taiwan Lourdes Association in San
Francisco. There were 20 health care professionals from Taiwan, Beijing, Hong Kong, South Korea, Singapore, Malaysia
and Japan; they had visited various local organisations and government departments and received updates on current
epidemiology of HIV/AIDS, HIV prevention education for Ethnics Minorities and sexual minorities in the United States
and strategies of Pre-exposure prophylaxis (PrEP) towards Latino Americans.
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The 6th National Academic Conference on HIV/AIDS

The Foundation was invited to attend “The 6th National Academic Conference on HIV/AIDS” held in Hangzhou, China in
October 2019. Dr. LEONG Che Hung, Chairman was invited to deliver an opening speech. The annual national conference
served an important platform between the Foundation and our counterparts in China for exchange of experiences on
HIV/AIDS.
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The Greater Bay Area AIDS Prevention Forum

The Foundation was invited to attend “The Greater Bay Area AIDS
Prevention Forum” organised by Macao AIDS Care Association on 16
November 2019. Ms. Eris Lau, Chief Executive, was invited to share
the situation of AIDS, prevention works in Hong Kong and the recent
services and events of the Foundation.

The Foundation will keep close collaborations with organizations in
nearby regions for provision of fit-for-purpose services to service

users and further promotion on prevention and anti-discrimination
on AIDS. A group photo of Ms. Eris Lau (the 2nd from the left),
Chief Executive, with other speakers.
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Ms. Eris Lau, Chief Executive, shared the situation of
AIDS, prevention works in Hong Kong and the recent
services and events of the Foundation at “The Greater
Bay Area AIDS Prevention Forum”
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Audited Financial Statements and
Reports of the Executive Board &
Independent Auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2020

#£2020F3H318ILFE
SR REN
SSRATlEIANHRE



THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

The executive board has pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st March 2020.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong AIDS Foundation Limited (the "Foundation"}, 2a company limited by guarantee, is a registered
charitable institution. The Foundation's funds are not distributable to its members. Every member of the
Foundation undertakes to contribute, if required, an amount not exceeding HK$100 to the assets of the
Foundation in the event of its being wound up. The Foundation's registered office is located at 5th Floor,
Shaukeiwan Jockey Club Clinic, 8 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Foundation continues to be engaging in activities to limit the spread of HIV infection in
the community and to provide support to those affected by HIV/AIDS.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Foundation for the year ended 31st March 2020 and the state of the Foundation's affairs as at
that date are set out in the attached financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Foundation falls within reporting exemption for the financial year. Accordingly, the Foundation is exempted
from preparing a business review.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS
The executive board members of the Foundation during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Dr. Edward C.H. LEONG (Chairman)
Mrs. Nina Y.B. LAM (Vice-Chairperson)
Dr. Patrick C.K. LI {Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Stephen W.T. LIU (resigned on 13th December 2019)
Mr. Keith K.W. LEE (Vice-Chairman)
Professor Alice T.H.W. CHIU (resigned on 13th December 2019)
Mr. Sai Chu HO
Dr. Simon S.M. KWOK
Mrs. Margaret S. LEUNG (Hon. Treasurer)
Miss Wing Yin LI
Mr. K.T. POON

Mrs. Emily H.Y. TANG
Miss Nora H.C. YAU
Miss Pansy P.C. YU

Mr. Richard L.K. TSANG (resigned on 13th December 2019)
Dr, Wilson LAM

Mr. Chan Hing Tai Christopter {Hon. Legal Advisor)

Professor Chen Zhiwei (appointed on 13th December 2019)
Ms. Lee Ming Ying, Grace (appointed on 13th December 2019)

In accordance with the Article 62 of the Foundation's Articles of Association, all existing Executive Board member
shall remain in office until 2021 annual general meeting.
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs, Law & Partners CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants.

On behalf of the executive board

Dr Edward C.H. LEONG
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18th November 2020
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LAW & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED o S
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of The Hong Kong AIDS Foundation Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong AIDS Foundation Limited ("the Foundation") set out
on pages 5 to 26, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of
surplus or deficit and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and reserves and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Foundation as at
31st March 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The executive board members are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the
date of this auditor's repart is information included in the report of the executive board, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Executive Board Members for the Financial Statements

The executive board members are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the executive board members determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the executive board members are responsible for assessing the
Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the executive board members either intend to liquidate
the Foundation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Law & Partners CPA Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability io
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

~ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, buf not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the executive board members.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive board members' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the executive board members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

Law & Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18th November 2020

Elizabeth Law
Practising Certificate Number: P01024
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF SURPLUS OR DEFICIT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31st March 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Note 2020 2019
Revenue 5 5,274,867 3,477,787
Other income 6 299.130 21,485
5,673,997 3,499,272
Expenditures
AIDS Trust Fund Projects (exclusive of staff cost) 663,321 639,975
Employees expenses 7 5,646,830 5,310,685
Activities expenses 409,746 -
National/international networking projects 89,318 277,957
Electricity 5,758 5,794
Exchange loss 2,915 -
Repairs and maintenance 15,596 73,004
Insurance 27,909 35,204
Printing and stationery 19,419 27,755
Recruitment 22,136 87,942
Publicity program 124,074 299,390
Service program 19,663 78,821
Rent and rates 28,300 27,800
Travelling and postage 6,280 5,641
Audit fee 10,000 10,000
Property, plant and equipment writien off 235 -
Sundry expenses 67,020 100,385
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 43,335 40,429
Telephone and paging 37,136 18,305
Volunteer co-coordination project 19,377 28,728
7.258.368 7,068,806
Net loss on fair value changes of financial assets at fair
value through surplus or deficit 2,070 3,390
Net loss on redemption/disposal of financial assets at
fair value through surplus or deficit - 833,689
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR {1,686,441) (4.406.613)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
surplus or deficit:
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Fair value changes during the year (233,545) -
(233,545) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {(1,919.986) {4,406.613)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st March 2020
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 72,051 77,080
Non-current financial assets 10 1,285,220 29,490
1,357,271 106,570
Current assefs
Accounts and other receivables 1 130,458 256,844
Cash and cash equivalents 12 22 056,945 25.704.176
22.187.403 25,961,020
Less: current liabilities
Accounts and other payables 13 1,118,555 902,802
Deferred income 15 1,554 796 2,373,479
2,673,351 3,276,281
Net current assets 19.514.052 22684739
NET ASSETS 20,871,323 22,791,309
FUNDS AND RESERVES
Seed fund : 30,000,000 30,000,000
Accumulated general fund (8,895,132) (7,208,691)
Investment revaluation reserve {233,545) -
20,871,323 22,791,309

Approved and autherised for issue by the executive board on 18th November 2020

Dr Edward C.H. LEONG : Mr. Lee Kit Wah
Chairman Vice-Chairman

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES
For the year ended 31st March 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong Doliars)

Investment

Seed Accumulated  revaluation

fund general fund reserve Total
At 1st April 2018 30,000,000 (2,802.078) - 27,197,922
Changes in funds and reserves for the year
Deficit for the year - (4,406,613) - {4,406,613)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the vear - (4,406.613) - (4.406.613)
At 31st March 2019 and 1st April 2019 . 30,000,000 (7.208.691) - 22,791,309
Changes in funds and reserves for the year
Deficit for the year - (1,686,441) - {1,686,441)
Other comprehensive income - - (233.545) {233.545)
Total comprehensive income for the year - _(1.686.441) . (233,545) _(1.919,986)
At 31st March 2020 30,000,000 (8,895.132) (233545) _20.871.323

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dolfars)

Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Deficit for the year {1,686,441) {4,406,613)
Adjustments for:
Interests income (284,665) {4,263)
Net loss on fair value changes of financial assets
at fair value through surplus or deficit 2,070 3,390
Net loss on redemption/disposai of financial assets
at fair value through surplus or deficit - 833,689
Dividend and bond interest income - (9,822)
Property, plant and equipment written off 235 -
Depreciation 43.335 40,429
{1,925,466) (3,543,190)
Decrease in accounts and other receivables 126,386 41,601
Increase/(decrease)} in accounts and other payables 215,753 (7,932)
Decrease in deferred income {818.683) {1,406,313)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,402.010) {4,915.834)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interests received 284,665 4,263
Dividends received - 9,822
Proceeds from disposal of investments - 17,594,821
Purchase of investments {1,491,345) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (38,541) (14,428}
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (1,245,221) 17.594 478
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,647,231) 12,678,644
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12 25.704.176 13,025,532
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12 22,056,945 25704176

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Foundation's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which include all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong, and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies is set out in note 2.

During the year, the Foundation has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are first effective for the current accounting period. A summary of the changes in accounting policies
resulting from the Foundation's application of these HKFRSs is set out in note 3.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is historical cost, except for
financial assets, which are stated at fair value (see note 2h).

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

b. ‘Revenue and other income recognition

The Foundation recognises revenue from contracts with customers when {or as) the Foundation
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a
customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. When
{or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Foundation recognises as revenue the amount of
the transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are constrained in
accordance with HKFRS 15) that is allocated to that performance obligation. Further details of the
Foundation's revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) government grants, subventions and donations income are recognised on the basis set out in
note 2c; .

(i) incomes from activities are recognised at a point in time when the activities are held;

(i} dividends income is recognised as other income when the right to receive payment is
established; and

(iv) interests income is recognised as other income as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

c. Government grants, subventions and donations
A government grant or subvention is recognised at their fair value when there is a reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Foundation will comply with the conditions
attaching with it.

Government grants, subventions and donations from government or other organisations, which are
earmarked for specific purposes, are recorded as deferred income and are released to the surplus

or deficit over the period necessary so as to match with the related costs they are intended to
compensate.

Donations for general purposes are recognised in surplus or deficit when received. Donations
related fo future period are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d. Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions during the reporting period are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.

e. Income tax

No provisien for income tax has been made as the Foundation is given the exemption under section
88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

f. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%

The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period.

The Foundation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
any items of property, plant and equipment may be impaired and that an impairment [oss recognised
in prior pericds for an item may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the .Foundation
recoverable amount of the item is estimated. An impairment loss, being the amount by which the
carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, or a reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

g. Leases
After the adoption of HKFRS 16
When the Foundation acts as a lessee, the Foundation assesses at inception of a confract whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Foundation elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and instead account for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

At the commencement date, the Foundation recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for
the rights and obligations created by all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less ("short-term leases") and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The
Foundation recognise the lease payments associated with those short-term leases and leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to surplus or deficit in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
g. Leases (continued)

After the adoption of HKFRS 18 (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assefs also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2f).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a_
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Foundation's estimate of the amount
expected fo be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Foundation will be reasonably certain fo exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding

- adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in surplus or
deficit if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Foundation presents right-of-use assets in property, plant and equipment (see note 2f), and
presents lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial position.

When the Foundation acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income when they arise.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the leases transfer substantially all risks and

rewards incidental to ownership of the assets to the Foundation. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. '

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

h. Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on the trade date when the Foundation becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the investments and are initially measured at fair value plus, in
the case of investments other than trading securities, transaction costs. Investments are further
categorised into the following classifications for the measurement after initial recognition.

(i) Investments in equity instruments

An investment in equity instruments is classified as fair value through surplus or deficit, except
for those investments in equity instrument not held for trading and are designated as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Foundation makes an
irrevocable election at initial recognition for the investment in equity instruments to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an instrument-by-instrument (i.e. share-by-share) basis. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income for such investment are not be subsequently transferred fo surpius or
deficit until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal of an investment in equity
instruments, the cumulative gain or loss of the investment is transferred from investment
revaluation reserve to accumulated general fund.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
h. Investments (continued)

(i Investments in non-equity instruments
An investment in non-equity instruments is classified as at:

a) Amortised cost - if the investment is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the investment in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of
the investment give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b} Fair value through other comprehensive income - if the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. A gain or loss on an investment in non-equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses, until the investment is derecognised. When such investment is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to surplus or deficit as a reclassification
adjustment.

¢) Fair value through surplus or deficit - if the investmenis are not classified as at amortised
cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(i) Fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value of an investment on initial recognition is normally the transaction price, unless it is
estimated by using a valuation technique when part of the consideration given or received is
for something other than the investments.

After initial recognition, the fair value of an investment quoted in an active market is based on
the unadjusted quoted price and, for investments not quoted in an active market, the
Foundation establishes the fair value of such investment by using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models.

(iv) Impairment of investments and other financial assets
The Foundation recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on the financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. The Foundation
considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of financial assets and assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

The Foundation considers the credit risk on a financial instrument is low if the financial
instrument has a low risk of default, the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the debtor to
fulfii its contractual cash flow obligations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICSES (continued)
h. Investments (continued)

(iv) Impairment of investments and other financial assets (continued)
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of the receivable
impairment charges account. Changes in the carrying amount of the receivable impairment
charges account are recognised in surplus or deficit. The receivable is written off against the
receivable impairment charges account when the Foundation has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the receivable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of expected credit losses decreases, the reversal
would be adjusted to the receivable impairment charges account at the reporting date. The
amount of any reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

i. Accounts and other receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities
A receivable is recognised when the Foundation's right to consideration is unconditional. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Foundation has an unconditional
right to consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset. Receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2h(iv).

A contract asset is recognised when the Foundation recognises revenue before being
unconditicnally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in note
2h(iv) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional. A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration, or has an
unconditional right to consideration (in such case, a corresponding receivable is recognised), before
the Foundation recognises the related revenue.

J- Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and demand deposits with bank. Cash equivalents are

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form
an integral part of the Foundation's cash management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.

k. Accounts and other payables
Accounts and other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after initial recognition, at

amortised cost, except for payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost.

l. Seed fund

Capital donations from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and The
Hong Kong Jockey Club are accounted for as contributions to the seed fund for the purpose of
generating future income for the Foundation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES (continued)
m. Employee benefits

(it Employee leave entitlements
Employee entittements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitiements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Foundation operates a mandatory provident fund scheme ("MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong.
The assets of scheme is held in separate irustee-administered funds. Obiligation for
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including contributions payable under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised in surplus or
deficit as incurred.

(i) Bonus plans
The Foundation recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses based on the discretions of
the Foundation. The Foundation recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

n. Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Foundation has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provision are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liahility, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICEES (continued)

0. Related parties
A party is considered fo be related to the Foundation if:

(i) the partyis a person or a close member of that person's family and that person:
(a) has control or joint control of the Foundation;
{b) bhas significant influence over the Foundation; or
{c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Foundation or of a parent of the
Foundation; or :

(i} the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Foundation are members of the same group {which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

(c) the entity and the Foundation are joint ventures of the same third party;

{d} one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Foundation or an entity related to the Foundation;

(f) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(h) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Foundation or to the parent of the Foundation.

3. CHANGES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Foundation has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are first
effective in the current accounting period and are relevant to the Foundation's financial statements,
including HKFRS 16 Leases. The effects of the application of these HKFRSs are summarised below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Before 2019, the Foundation applied HKAS 17, Leases and its leases of assets are classified as finance
leases when the leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets to
the Foundation. Assets held under finance leases are recognised at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, on the finance leases are recorded as obligations under finance leases,
which are presented as lease liabilities after the adoption of HKFRS 16. Depreciation and impairment loss
are calculated and recognised. All other leases are classified as operating leases and lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

From 2019, after the adoption of HKFRS 16, which replaces HKAS 17 and the related interpretations, the
Foundation adopts a single accounting model for leases, which requires the Foundation as a lessee fo
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for the rights and obligations created by all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less ("shori-term leases") and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, the Foundation as a lessor continues to classify
its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.
The Foundation is also required to have enhanced disclosures to give a basis for users of financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on its financial position, financial performance and cash
flows.
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3. CHANGES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Foundation has applied the practical expedient in paragraph C3 of HKFRS 16 (i.e. the Foundation has
not reassessed whether a contract was, or contained, a lease at 1st April 2019). In particular, the
Foundation applies HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17.
Besides, the Foundation does not apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously identified as

leases applying HKAS 17 and applies HKFRS 16 to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1st April
2019.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 has resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Foundation has applied
HKFRS 16 retrospectively and taken the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 not to restate comparative
information which continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

The Foundation has also elected to apply the following practical expedients in paragraph C10 of HKFRS

16 when applying HKFRS 16 retrospectively to leases previously classified as operating leases applying

HKAS 17 in which the Foundation is the lessee:

] A single discount rate is applied to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

i} Leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of 1st April 2019 are accounted for in the
same way as short-term leases; and

iii) Initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at 1st April 2019.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have any material effects on the Foundation's financial position and
performance at 1st April 2019.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The Foundation’s management makes assumptions, estimates and judgments in the process of applying
the Foundation's accounting policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The assumptions, estimates and judgments are based
on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
While the management reviews their judgments, estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual
results will seldom equal to the estimates.

a. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial instruments are set out in note
18.

b. Critical judgements in applying the Foundation's accounting policies
A critical judgment in applying the Foundation's accounting policies is set out as follows:

Significant increase in credit risk

HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether
the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Foundation takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information.

53 / ¢ Hong Kong AIDS Foundation Annual Report 2019-2020



THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong Dolfars)

5. REVENUE

The amount of revenue arising from the pringipal activity of the Foundation during the year is as follows:

2020 2019
Donations received from
AIDS Trust Fund 3,831,257 3,003,501
Scholarship Fund - 35,392
Grant donations 816,805 419,159
Apply Daily Charitable Foundation - 3,897
Gliead Sciences Hong Kong Limited - 6,336
Janssen Pharmaceutical Company 5.000 9,502
4,653,062 3,477,787
Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from activities
Charity activities -Run for an AIDS Free World 621,805 -
5274867 3,477,787
B. OTHER INCOME
2020 2019
Dividend income - 9,822
Bank interests income 284,665 4,263
Sundry income 14,465 7.400
299130 21,485
7. EMPLOYEES EXPENSES
2020 2019
Salaries and bonus, allowances and other benefits in kind 5,367,374 5,106,058
Pension cost - MPF Scheme 218,651 200,616

Increase in obligations for employee benefits

60.805

5,646,830

4,011

5,310,685

8. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

The following disclosures are made pursuant to section 383(1){a) to (f} of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Parts 2 to 4 of the Companies Ordinance (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G):

a. During the year, no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in respect of termination of
executive board members' services (equivalent to key management compensation) were paid or
made, directly or indirectly, to the executive board members; nor are any payable (2019: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making available executive board
members' services (2019: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
executive board members, their controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2019: Nil).

b. No executive board member of the Foundation had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Foundation's business to which
the Foundation was or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2019: Nil).
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture Office
and fixtures equipment Total
Cost o
At 1st April 2018 496,838 428,780 925,618
Additions 4.800 9.628 14.428
At 31st March 2019 and 1st April 2019 501,638 438,408 940,046
Additions - 38,541 38,541
Written off - (285.006) (285.006)
At 31st March 2020 501.638 191,943 693,581
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses
At 1st April 2018 464,854 357,683 822,537
Charge for the year 12,962 27.467 40,429
At 31st March 2019 and 1st April 2019 477,816 385,150 862,966
Charge for the year 11,467 31,868 43,335
Written off - {284 771) (284,771)
At 31st March 2020 489,283 132,247 621.530
Net book value
At 31st March 2020 12,355 50.696 72,051
At 31st March 2019 23,822 53,258 77,080
Disclosure for leases included:
2020 2019
Expense relating to short-term leases
- lease term of more than one month 104.000 -
Total cash outflow for leases 104,000 -

The company entered into a lease agreement in respect of the premises at commercial building as its
office in Hong Kong. The lease term of the lease stands for one year with no extension or termination
options and all the lease payments are fixed. The lease does not include any option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the contract term.

10. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

II\J
[we]
N
yeu)
[l
[}
—
((e]

Financial assets measured at fair value through
surplus or deficit
- Listed fund in Hong Kong 27,420 29,490

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 1,257,800 -
1,285,220 29,490

The listed equity securities in Hong Kong are investments in PetroChina Company Limited and Alibaba
Group Holding Limited with fair value of HK$340,800 (2019: Nil} and HK$917,000 (2019: Nil} respectively,
which are designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income because they are held for
strategic purposes. No divided was received on these investments during the year.
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11.  ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
Accounts receivables 66,350 191,174
Deposits and prepayments 64.108 65,670
130,458 256,844
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2020 2019
Cash at banks 21,537,200 25,693,176
Cash at a licenced corporation 508,655 -
Cash on hands 11,000 11.000
22,056,945 25,704,176
13. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2020 2019
Other payables (note 14) 694,272 692,604
Accrued charges and miscellaneous payable 205,846 52,050
Employee benefit obligations (note 16) 218,437 158,148
1,118,555 902,802
14. OTHER PAYABLES
2020 2019
Af beginning of the vear 692,604 691,304
Donation received on behalf of CAl 1.668 1,300
At end of the year (note13) 694 272 892,604

The Foundation has been working with CAl o help address the AIDS problems in China since 2004, The
fund was set up for HIV/AIDS projects in China through fund raising activities conducted by the Hong Kong
Committee for CAl. The Foundation is responsible for managing funds raised in Hong Kong on behalf of
the Hong Kong Committee for CAl. The disbursement decisions of the fund will be made by the Hong
Kong Committee for CAl.
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HE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

{Expressed in Hong Kong Dolfars)

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2020 2019
Provision for unused annual leave 218.437 158,148

a. Defined contribution retirement plan
The Foundation participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the MPF scheme) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF schemes is defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the schemes, the employer and its
employees are required to make confributions to the plans at 5% each of the employees’ relevant

income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan under
MPF scheme vest immediately.

b. Long service payments
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Foundation is obliged to make lump sum
payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Foundation. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees' final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Foundation’s retirement plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Foundation. The
Foundation does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

The present value of unfunded 'obligation to make long-service payment under the Hong Kong

Employment Ordinance are immaterial, the Foundation does not account the provision for the
obligation.

17. FUNDS AND RESERVES MANAGEMENT

The Foundation's objectives when managing its funds and reserves are to safeguard the Foundation's
ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue fo provide benefits to the community.

The Foundation manages the funds and reserves structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the funds and reserves structure, the Foundation may organise fund-raising activities, apply
government grants and subventions, and adjust the amount of donations being made and level of activities
from time to time. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years
ended 31st March 2019 and 2020.

The Foundation monitors its funds and reserves by reviewing the level of funds and reserves which
comprises the seek fund, accumulated general fund and investment revaluation reserve. The
Foundation's policy is to keep the funds and reserves at a reasonable level. The funds and reserves as at
31st March 2020 totalled to HK$20,871,323 (2019: HK$22,791,309).
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Foundation has classified its financial assets in the following categories:

Financial assets at
fair value through  Financial assets at  Financial
other comprehensive fair value through  assets at

income surplus or deficit amortised cost Total
2020
Non-current financial assets
{note 10) 1,257,800 27,420 - 1,285,220
Accounts receivables (note 11) - - 66,350 66,350
Deposits (note 11} - - 34,450 34,450
Cash and cash equivalents - - 22,056,945 22.056.945
1 i257’3300 27,420 22i1 57,745 23i442i965
2019
Non-current financial assets
(note 10) - 29,490 - 29,490
Accounts receivables {note 11) - - 191,174 191,174
Deposits {note 11) - - 14,200 14,200
Cash and cash equivalents - - 25,704,176 25.704,176
- 29,490 25,909,550 25.939.040

The Foundation has classified its financial liabilities in the following categories:

Financial liabilities at cost or amortised cost

2020 2019
Other payables (note 13) 694,272 692,604
Accrued charges and miscellaneous payable (note 13) 205,846 52,050
—00118 744654

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31st
March 2019 and 2020.

The Foundation is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising in the normal course of its
operation and financial instruments. The Foundation’s risk management objectives, policies and processes
mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance and
position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

a. Credit risk
The Foundation is exposed to credit risk on financial assets, mainly attributable to cash at banks and
cash at a licenced corporation classified as cash and cash equivalents. For cash at banks and cash

at a licenced corporation, as the counterparties are considered to have high creditworthiness, the
Foundation's exposure to credit risk is limited.

The credit risk on other financial instruments are considered to be low.

2020 2019
Summary quantitative data
Accounts receivables (note 11) : 66,350 191,174
Denposits (note 11) 34,450 14,200
Cash and cash equivalents 22.045945 25693176
22,146,745 25,8098 550

At 31st March 2019 and 2020, the Foundation's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset at that date.
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

18. . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Liquidity risk
The Foundation is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. |t manages its funds conservatively

by maintaining a comfortable level of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous
operational need.

Summary guantitative data

Not later Carrying
than 1 year amount
2020
Other payables (note 13) 694,272 694,272
Accrued charges and miscellaneous payable (note
13) 205,846 205,846
900,118 900,118
2019
Other payables (note 13) 692,604 692,604
Accrued charges and miscellaneous payable (note
13} —52,050 — 52,050
744 654 744654

C. Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Foundation's exposure on cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from its cash at
banks. As interest rates maintain at a low level, no material exposure on cash flow interest
rate risk is expected,

2020 2018
Floating-rate financial assets
Cash at banks (note 12) 2,798,969 9792116
Fixed-rate financial assets
Cash at banks (note 12) 2,500,000 -

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2020, if interest rates at that date had been 1% {2019: 1%) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Foundation's deficit for the year and accumulated general
fund would have been approximately HK$117,000 lower/higher and HK$117,000 higher/lower
respectively (2019: HK$97,921 lower/higher and HK$97,921 higher/lower respectively), and
no effect on other components of fund and reserves.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for the relevant financial instruments in existence at that date. The change in
interest rate represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates at that date over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.

The analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2019.
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THEINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
C. Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk
The Foundation's operations and financial instruments are mainly denominated in its

functional currency, i.e. Hong Kong dollars, except for certain assets as stated below which
were denominated in Renminbi (RMB).

The Foundation’s closely and continucusly monitors the exposure on currency risk. Since the
historical exchange rate fluctuation on Renminbi is insignificant. Thus, there is no significant
exposure expected on Renminbi transactions.

Summary quantitative data

Denominated in RMB

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
Cash at banks (note 12) 110,494 113,409

No sensitivity analysis for the Foundation's exposure fo currency risk arising from financial
assets denominated in RMB is prepared since the management's assessment of reasonably
changes in value of the HK dollar against RMB is insignificant.

(iiy Other price risk
The investments in equity securities and funds expose the Foundation to price risk. As the
Foundation's policy is only to invest in such investments by its surplus funds, the exposure
may not have significant impact on the Foundation's financial position.

2020 2019
Summary guantitative data
Financial assets measured at fair value through
surplus or deficit
- Listed fund in Hong Kong (note 10} . 27,420 29,490
Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
- Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (note 10) 1,257,800
1.285.220

285, 29,490
Sensitivity analysis
A 5% increase/decrease in market prices at 31st March 2020 with all other variables held
constant, would have no material effect on deficit for the year and increased/decreased
investment revaluation reserve by HK$62,820 (2019: no material effect on deficit for the year
and investment revaluation reserve). '

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in market
price had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
market price risk for the relevant financial instruments in existence at that date. The changes
in market price represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in
market price at that date over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.

The analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2019.
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

d. Fair values
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position and non-
financial instruments that are disclosed at fair value are categorised in its entirety into the following
three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

- Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial assets or liabilities.

- Leve! 2: fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3: fair values measured using inputs for the financial asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value:

Recurring fair value measurement:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2020
Financial assets at fair value through
surplus or deficit
- Listed funds in Hong Kong (note 10) 27,420 - - 27,420
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
- Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

(note 10) 1,257 800 - - 1,257,800
1,285 220 - - 1,285,220
2019

Financial assets at fair value through
surplus or defigit

- Listed fund in Hong Kong (note 10) 29,490 - - 29,490

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation did not have material related party transactions other than those already disclosed in other
parts of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG AIDS FOUNDATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 371st March 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dolfars)

20. HK FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
PERIOD

HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective for the current period include the following HKFRSs
which may be relevant to the Foundation's operations and financial statements:

Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination - Definition of a

Business 1st January 2020
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemenis and

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors - Amendments to Definition of Material ist January 2020
Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement, HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amendments for Interest Rate

Benchmark Reform 1st January 2020
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Leases - Covid-19-Refated Rent

Concessions 1st June 2020
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1st January 2021
Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds

before Intended Use 1st January 2022

Amendment to HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets - Onerous Conltracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1st January 2022
Amendment to HKFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the

Conceptual Framework 1st January 2022
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1st January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1st January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures and HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture To be determined

The Foundation has not early adopted these HKFRSs. Initial assessment has indicated that the adoption
of these HKFRSs would not have a significant impact on the Foundation's financial statements in the year
of initial application. The Foundation will be continuing with the assessment of the impact of these
HKFRSs and other significant changes may be identified as a result,
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BEAU Group Company Limited

Bio-asia Diagnostics Co., Ltd

Body & Soul
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Community Forum on AIDS

Council for the AIDS Trust Fund

D2 Studio
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Junior Police Call

Katon CPA Limited
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KVL Productions Co., Ltd
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LF Asia (Hong Kong) Limited

M.A.C. Cosmetics

M-A-C AIDS Fund

Macao AIDS Care Association

Mano (HK) International Limited
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Monash University
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Organisations / Companies

QQ Fitness Sauna

Queer Stright Alliance

Rainbow Pub

Reckitt Benckiser Group plc

Red Ribbon Centre, Department of Health

ROC Limited

Sa Sa International Holdings Limited

Sa Sa Making Life Beautiful Charity Fund Limited
Sampson Store Hong Kong

San Francisco AIDS Foundation

Sheen Hok Charitable Foundation

Shun Hing Education and Charity Fund

Sincere World Far East Limited

Sinomax Group Limited

SKH Holy Carpenter Primary School

Social Career

St. John’s Cathedral HIV Education Centre

Stephen Liu and Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Strategic Public Relations Group Limited

Sunshine Action

Taiwan Lourdes Association

The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong

The Charterhouse Causeway Bay Hotel

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

The Education University of Hong Kong

The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts

The Hong Kong Coalition of AIDS Service Organizations
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

The Hongkong Bank Foundation

The Nethersole School of Nursing - The Chinese University of Hong Kong
The Rock Chen Charitable and Education Foundation Ltd.
The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers
The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong
The University of Hong Kong (Master of Expressive Arts Therapy Program)
Time Bar

United Italian Corp. (HK) Ltd.

VIP Bar

WINK Bar

Women Coalition of HKSAR

Yan Chai Hospital

Yu Ching Hoi & Company

Yue Wing Cheong Manufactory Limited

Zenith Medical Company Limited

Zoo Bar

Mainland Project
Organisations / Companies

Beijing Association of STD and AIDS Prevention and Control
Beijing Ditan Hospital Capital Medical University

Chinese Association of STD/AIDS Prevention and Control
Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention

Chinese Preventive Medicine Association

Family Health International

Hong Kong Committee for China AIDS Initiative

National Centre for AIDS/STD Control and Prevention, China CDC
National Health Commission of the People’s Republic of China
The Home of Red Ribbon

Tianjin Shenlan Public Health Counseling Service Center
UNAIDS China Office

Xuzhou City Sunshine Home

Zhuhai AIDS Working Committee

Zhuhai Centre for Disease Control and Prevention

Zhuhai Xutong Volunteer Service Centre
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